WIRELESS INFORMATION AND POWER TRANSFER THEORY AND PRACTICE

EDITED BY

DERRICK WING KWAN NG TRUNG Q. DUONG CAIJUN ZHONG ROBERT SCHOBER





Wireless Information and Power Transfer

Wireless Information and Power Transfer: Theory and Practice

Edited by

Derrick Wing Kwan Ng The University of New South Wales, Australia

Trung Q. Duong Queen's University Belfast, United Kingdom

Caijun Zhong Zhejiang University, China

Robert Schober University of Erlangen-Nuremberg, Germany





This edition first published 2019 © 2019 John Wiley & Sons Ltd

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, except as permitted by law. Advice on how to obtain permission to reuse material from this title is available at http://www.wiley.com/go/permissions.

The right of Derrick Wing Kwan Ng, Trung Q. Duong, Caijun Zhong and Robert Schober to be identified as the authors of the editorial material in this work has been asserted in accordance with law.

Registered Offices

John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 111 River Street, Hoboken, NJ 07030, USA John Wiley & Sons Ltd, The Atrium, Southern Gate, Chichester, West Sussex, PO19 8SQ, UK

Editorial Office

The Atrium, Southern Gate, Chichester, West Sussex, PO19 8SQ, UK

For details of our global editorial offices, customer services, and more information about Wiley products visit us at www.wiley.com.

Wiley also publishes its books in a variety of electronic formats and by print-on-demand. Some content that appears in standard print versions of this book may not be available in other formats.

Limit of Liability/Disclaimer of Warranty

MATLAB® is a trademark of The MathWorks, Inc. and is used with permission. The MathWorks does not warrant the accuracy of the text or exercises in this book. This work's use or discussion of MATLAB® software or related products does not constitute endorsement or sponsorship by The MathWorks of a particular pedagogical approach or particular use of the MATLAB® software. While the publisher and authors have used their best efforts in preparing this work, they make no representations or warranties with respect to the accuracy or completeness of the contents of this work and specifically disclaim all warranties, including without limitation any implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. No warranty may be created or extended by sales representatives, written sales materials or promotional statements for this work. The fact that an organization, website, or product is referred to in this work as a citation and/or potential source of further information does not mean that the publisher and authors endorse the information or services the organization, website, or product may provide or recommendations it may make. This work is sold with the understanding that the publisher is not engaged in rendering professional services. The advice and strategies contained herein may not be suitable for your situation. You should consult with a specialist where appropriate. Further, readers should be aware that websites listed in this work may have changed or disappeared between when this work was written and when it is read. Neither the publisher nor authors shall be liable for any loss of profit or any other commercial damages, including but not limited to special, incidental, consequential, or other damages.

Library of Congress Cataloging-in-Publication Data

Names: Ng, Derrick Wing Kwan, editor. | Duong, Trung Q., editor. | Zhong,

Caijun, (Professor of electrical engineering), editor. | Schober, Robert, editor.

Title: Wireless information and power transfer : theory and practice / edited by Derrick Wing Kwan Ng, The University of New South Wales, Sydney, Australia, Trung Q Duong, Queen's University Belfast, Belfast, UK, Caijun Zhong, Zhejiang University, Zhejiang, People's Republic of China,

Robert Schober, University of Erlangen-Nuremberg, Erlangen, Germany.

Description: First edition. | Hoboken, NJ : John Wiley & Sons, Inc., [2019] | Includes bibliographical references and index. |

Identifiers: LCCN 2018032339 (print) | LCCN 2018033401 (ebook) | ISBN

9781119476849 (Adobe PDF) | ISBN 9781119476832 (ePub) | ISBN 9781119476795 (hardcover) Subjects: LCSH: Wireless power transmission. | Wireless communication systems.

Classification: LCC TK3088 (ebook) | LCC TK3088 .W57 2018 (print) | DDC 621.381/044–dc23 LC record available at https://lccn.loc.gov/2018032339

Cover Design: Wiley

Cover Image: ©ktsimage/Getty Images

Set in 10/12pt Warnock by SPi Global, Pondicherry, India

10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

To our loves

Contents

List of Contributors *xiii* Preface *xvii*

- 1 The Era of Wireless Information and Power Transfer 1
 - Derrick Wing Kwan Ng, Trung Q. Duong, Caijun Zhong, and Robert Schober
- 1.1 Introduction 1
- 1.2 Background 3
- 1.2.1 RF-Based Wireless Power Transfer 3
- 1.2.2 Receiver Structure for WIPT 4
- 1.3 Energy Harvesting Model and Waveform Design 6
- 1.4 Efficiency and Interference Management in WIPT Systems 9
- 1.5 Security in SWIPT Systems 10
- 1.6 Cooperative WIPT Systems 11
- 1.7 WIPT for 5G Applications 11
- 1.8 Conclusion 12 Acknowledgement 13 Bibliography 13
- 2 Fundamentals of Signal Design for WPT and SWIPT 17
 - Bruno Clerckx and Morteza Varasteh
- 2.1 Introduction 17
- 2.2 WPT Architecture 19
- 2.3 WPT Signal and System Design 21
- 2.4 SWIPT Signal and System Design 29
- 2.5 Conclusions and Observations 33 Bibliography 33
- 3 Unified Design of Wireless Information and Power Transmission 39

Dong In Kim, Jong Jin Park, Jong Ho Moon, and Kang Yoon Lee

- 3.1 Introduction 39
- 3.2 Nonlinear EH Models 40

- viii Contents
 - 3.3 Waveform and Transceiver Design 43
 - 3.3.1 Multi-tone (PAPR) based SWIPT 43
 - 3.3.2 Dual Mode SWIPT 48
 - 3.4 Energy Harvesting Circuit Design 53
 - 3.5 Discussion and Conclusion 58
 - Bibliography 58
 - 4 Industrial SWIPT: Backscatter Radio and RFIDs 61
 - Panos N. Alevizos and Aggelos Bletsas
 - 4.1 Introduction 61
 - 4.2 Wireless Signal Model 62
 - 4.3 RFID Tag Operation 64
 - 4.3.1 RF Harvesting and Powering for RFID Tag 64
 - 4.3.2 RFID Tag Backscatter (Uplink) Radio 65
 - 4.4 Reader BER for Operational RFID 68
 - 4.5 RFID Reader SWIPT Reception 69
 - 4.5.1 Harvesting Sensitivity Outage 69
 - 4.5.2 Power Consumption Outage 70
 - 4.5.3 Information Outage 71
 - 4.5.4 Successful SWIPT Reception 71
 - 4.6 Numerical Results 72
 - 4.7 Conclusion 76
 - Bibliography 76

5 Multi-antenna Energy Beamforming for SWIPT 81

- Jie Xu and Rui Zhang
- 5.1 Introduction 81
- 5.2 System Model 84
- 5.3 Rate–Energy Region Characterization 87
- 5.3.1 Problem Formulation 87
- 5.3.2 Optimal Solution 90
- 5.4 Extensions 93
- 5.5 Conclusion 94
- Bibliography 95

6 On the Application of SWIPT in NOMA Networks 99

- Yuanwei Liu and Maged Elkashlan
- 6.1 Introduction 99
- 6.1.1 Motivation 100
- 6.2 Network Model *101*
- 6.2.1 Phase 1: Direct Transmission *101*
- 6.2.2 Phase 2: Cooperative Transmission 104
- 6.3 Non-Orthogonal Multiple Access with User Selection 105

Contents ix

- 6.3.1 RNRF Selection Scheme 105
- 6.3.2 NNNF Selection Scheme 108
- 6.3.3 NNFF Selection Scheme 111
- 6.4 Numerical Results *112*
- 6.4.1 Outage Probability of the Near Users *112*
- 6.4.2 Outage Probability of the Far Users 115
- 6.4.3 Throughput in Delay-Sensitive Transmission Mode 116
- 6.5 Conclusions 117 Bibliography 118

7 Fairness-Aware Wireless Powered Communications with Processing Cost 121

Zoran Hadzi-Velkov, Slavche Pejoski, and Nikola Zlatanov

- 7.1 Introduction 121
- 7.2 System Model 122
- 7.2.1 Energy Storage Strategies 124
- 7.2.2 Circuit Power Consumption 124
- 7.3 Proportionally Fair Resource Allocation 125
- 7.3.1 Short-term Energy Storage Strategy 125
- 7.3.2 Long-term Energy Storage Strategy 127
- 7.3.3 Practical Online Implementation 130
- 7.3.4 Numerical Results 131
- 7.4 Conclusion 133
- 7.5 Appendix 133
- 7.5.1 Proof of Theorem 7.2 *133* Bibliography *136*

8 Wireless Power Transfer in Millimeter Wave 139

Talha Ahmed Khan and Robert W. Heath Jr.

- 8.1 Introduction 139
- 8.2 System Model 141
- 8.3 Analytical Results 143
- 8.4 Key Insights 147
- 8.5 Conclusions 151
- 8.6 Appendix *153*
 - Bibliography 154

9 Wireless Information and Power Transfer in Relaying Systems 157

P. D. Diamantoulakis, K. N. Pappi, and G. K. Karagiannidis

- 9.1 Introduction 157
- 9.2 Wireless-Powered Cooperative Networks with a Single Source–Destination Pair *158*

x Contents

- 9.2.1 System Model and Outline 158
- 9.2.2 Wireless Energy Harvesting Relaying Protocols 159
- 9.2.3 Multiple Antennas at the Relay 161
- 9.2.4 Multiple Relays and Relay Selection Strategies 163
- 9.2.5 Power Allocation Strategies for Multiple Carriers *166*
- 9.3 Wireless-Powered Cooperative Networks with Multiple Sources *168*
- 9.3.1 System Model 168
- 9.3.2 Power Allocation Strategies 169
- 9.3.3 Multiple Relays and Relay Selection Strategies 173
- 9.3.4 Two-Way Relaying Networks 175
- 9.4 Future Research Challenges 176
- 9.4.1 Nonlinear Energy Harvesting Model and Hardware Impairments *176*
- 9.4.2 NOMA-based Relaying 176
- 9.4.3 Large-Scale Networks 176
- 9.4.4 Cognitive Relaying *177* Bibliography *177*

10 Harnessing Interference in SWIPT Systems 181

- Stelios Timotheou, Gan Zheng, Christos Masouros, and Ioannis Krikidis
- 10.1 Introduction 181
- 10.2 System Model 183
- 10.3 Conventional Precoding Solution 184
- 10.4 Joint Precoding and Power Splitting with Constructive Interference *185*
- 10.4.1 Problem Formulation 186
- 10.4.2 Upper Bounding SOCP Algorithm 188
- 10.4.3 Successive Linear Approximation Algorithm 190
- 10.4.4 Lower Bounding SOCP Formulation 191
- 10.5 Simulation Results 192
- 10.6 Conclusions 194 Bibliography 194
- 11 Physical Layer Security in SWIPT Systems with Nonlinear Energy Harvesting Circuits 197

Yuqing Su, Derrick Wing Kwan Ng, and Robert Schober

- 11.1 Introduction 197
- 11.2 Channel Model 200
- 11.2.1 Energy Harvesting Model 201
- 11.2.2 Channel State Information Model 203
- 11.2.3 Secrecy Rate 204
- 11.3 Optimization Problem and Solution 204

- 11.4 Results 208
 11.5 Conclusions 211 Appendix-Proof of Theorem 11.1 211 Bibliography 213
- 12 Wireless-Powered Cooperative Networks with Energy Accumulation 217 Yifan Gu, He Chen, and Yonghui Li
- 12.1 Introduction *217*
- 12.2 System Model *219*
- 12.3 Energy Accumulation of Relay Battery 222
- 12.3.1 Transition Matrix of the MC 222
- 12.3.2 Stationary Distribution of the Relay Battery 224
- 12.4 Throughput Analysis 224
- 12.5 Numerical Results 226
- 12.6 Conclusion 228
- 12.7 Appendix 229 Bibliography 231
- 13 Spectral and Energy-Efficient Wireless-Powered IoT Networks 233
 - Qingqing Wu, Wen Chen, and Guangchi Zhang
- 13.1 Introduction 233
- 13.2 System Model and Problem Formulation 235
- 13.2.1 System Model 235
- 13.2.2 T-WPCN and Problem Formulation 236
- 13.2.3 N-WPCN and Problem Formulation 237
- 13.3 T-WPCN or N-WPCN? 237
- 13.3.1 Optimal Solution for T-WPCN 238
- 13.3.2 Optimal Solution for N-WPCN 239
- 13.3.3 TDMA versus NOMA 240
- 13.4 Numerical Results 243
- 13.4.1 SE versus PB Transmit Power 243
- 13.4.2 SE versus Device Circuit Power 245
- 13.5 Conclusions 245
- 13.6 Future Work *247*
 - Bibliography 247
- 14 Wireless-Powered Mobile Edge Computing Systems 253 Feng Wang, Jie Xu, Xin Wang, and Shuguang Cui
- 14.1 Introduction 253
- 14.2 System Model 256
- 14.3 Joint MEC-WPT Design 260

xii Contents

- 14.3.1 Problem Formulation 260
- 14.3.2 Optimal Solution 260
- 14.4 Numerical Results 266
- 14.5 Conclusion 268 Bibliography 268

15 Wireless Power Transfer: A Macroscopic Approach 273

- Constantinos Psomas and Ioannis Krikidis
- 15.1 Wireless-Powered Cooperative Networks with Energy Storage 274
- 15.1.1 System Model 274
- 15.1.2 Relay Selection Schemes 276
- 15.1.3 Numerical Results 280
- 15.2 Wireless-Powered Ad Hoc Networks with SIC and SWIPT 282
- 15.2.1 System Model 282
- 15.2.2 SWIPT with SIC 284
- 15.2.3 Numerical Results 285
- 15.3 A Wireless-Powered Opportunistic Feedback Protocol 286
- 15.3.1 System Model 287
- 15.3.2 Wireless-Powered OBF Protocol 290
- 15.3.3 Beam Outage Probability 290
- 15.3.4 Numerical Results 292
- 15.4 Conclusion 293 Bibliography 294

Index 297

List of Contributors

Panos N. Alevizos Technical University of Crete Greece

Aggelos Bletsas Technical University of Crete Greece

He Chen The University of Sydney Australia

Wen Chen Shanghai Jiao Tong University China

Bruno Clerckx Imperial College London United Kingdom

Shuguang Cui University of California USA and Shenzhen Research Institute of Big Data China Panagiotis D. Diamantoulakis

Friedrich-Alexander University (FAU) Germany

Trung Q. Duong Queens University Belfast United Kingdom

Maged Elkashlan Queen Mary University of London United Kingdom

Yifan Gu The University of Sydney Australia

Zoran Hadzi-Velkov Ss. Cyril and Methodius University Macedonia

Robert W. Heath Jr. The University of Texas at Austin USA

George K. Karagiannidis Aristotle University of Thessaloniki Greece xiv List of Contributors

Talha Ahmed Khan The University of Texas at Austin USA

Ioannis Krikidis University of Cyprus Cyprus

Dong In Kim Sungkyunkwan University (SKKU) Korea

Kang Yoon Lee Sungkyunkwan University (SKKU) Korea

Yonghui Li The University of Sydney Australia

Yuanwei Liu Queen Mary University of London United Kingdom

Christos Masouros University College London United Kingdom

Jong Ho Moon Sungkyunkwan University (SKKU) Korea

Derrick Wing Kwan Ng The University of New South Wales Australia

Koralia N. Pappi Intracom S. A. Telecom Solutions Greece

and

Aristotle University of Thessaloniki Greece Jong Jin Park Sungkyunkwan University (SKKU) Korea

Slavche Pejoski Ss. Cyril and Methodius University Macedonia

Constantinos Psomas University of Cyprus Cyprus

Robert Schober University of Erlangen-Nuremberg Germany

Yuqing Su The University of New South Wales Australia

Stelios Timotheou University of Cyprus Cyprus

Morteza Varasteh Imperial College London United Kingdom

Feng Wang Guangdong University of Technology China

Xin Wang Fudan University China

Qingqing Wu National University of Singapore Singapore

Jie Xu Guangdong University of Technology China

Guangchi Zhang

Guangdong University of Technology China

Caijun Zhong

Zhejiang University China

Rui Zhang

National University of Singapore Singapore

Gan Zheng

Loughborough University United Kingdom

Nikola Zlatanov

Monash University Australia

Preface

The goal of this book is to provide readers with a comprehensive insight into the theory, models, techniques, implementation, and application of wireless information and power transfer (WIPT) in energy-constrained wireless communication networks. Written by leading experts on the subject, this book includes 15 chapters, which cover various aspects of WIPT systems, including system modeling, physical layer techniques, resource allocation, and performance analysis. Chapter 1 serves as an introductory chapter and provides an overview of the key research problems regarding WIPT systems. The other 14 chapters aim to tackle specific research challenges for WIPT system design. All the chapters can be read independently.

We would like to express our gratitude to all the authors for their excellent contributions and timeliness in completing their respective chapters. In addition, we would like to thank the publisher team. Finally, we would like to thank the Australian Research Council (DE170100137) and the National Natural Science Foundation of China (61671406) for their financial support.

Derrick Wing Kwan Ng Trung Q. Duong Caijun Zhong Robert Schober

1

The Era of Wireless Information and Power Transfer

Derrick Wing Kwan Ng^{1*}, Trung Q. Duong², Caijun Zhong³, and Robert Schober⁴

¹ School of Electrical Engineering and Telecommunications, The University of New South Wales, Australia ² School of Electronics, Electrical Engineering and Computer Science, Queens University Belfast, United Kingdom

³Institute of Information and Communication Engineering, Zhejiang University, China ⁴Institute for Digital Communications, Friedrich-Alexander-University Erlangen-Nuremberg (FAU), Germany

1.1 Introduction

In recent decades, the rapid development of wireless communication technologies has triggered a massive growth in the number of wireless communication devices for various practical applications, including e-health, autonomous control, logistics and transportation, environmental monitoring, energy management, safety management, etc. It is expected that in the era of the Internet of Things (IoT), there will be 50 billion wireless communication devices connected together worldwide via the Internet with a connection density of 1 million devices per km² [1]. In particular, small wireless sensor modules will be unobtrusively and invisibly integrated into clothing, walls, and vehicles at locations which are inaccessible for wired/manual recharging. However, battery-powered wireless communication devices have limited energy storage capacity and their frequent replacement can be costly, cumbersome, or even impossible (e.g., biomedical implants), which creates a serious performance bottleneck for realizing reliable and ubiquitous wireless communication networks. A promising approach to prolong the lifetime of traditional wireless communication systems is to let the wireless communication devices harvest energy from the environment [2-4]. For example, solar, wind, and

Wireless Information and Power Transfer: Theory and Practice, First Edition. Edited by Derrick Wing Kwan Ng, Trung Q. Duong, Caijun Zhong, and Robert Schober. © 2019 John Wiley & Sons Ltd. Published 2019 by John Wiley & Sons Ltd.

^{*}Corresponding author: w.k.ng@unsw.edu.au

geothermal are the major renewable energy sources for generating electricity. Unfortunately, these conventional natural energy sources are usually climate and location dependent, which may be problematic for mobile devices. Also, the intermittent and uncontrollable nature of natural energy sources makes the use of energy harvesting in wireless communication systems, where providing a continuous and stable quality of service (QoS) is of paramount importance, challenging.

Wireless power transfer (WPT) offers a viable solution for facilitating efficient and sustainable communication networks serving energy-limited communication devices [5-8]. Specifically, in practical systems, wireless devices communicate with each other via electromagnetic (EM) waves in the radio frequency (RF) band. Indeed, RF signals carry both information and energy simultaneously. Thus, the RF energy of propagating signals radiated by transmitters can be recycled at receivers for prolonging the lifetime of networks and supporting the energy consumption required for information transmission. This technology eliminates the need for power cords and any physical contact for manual recharging. Moreover, the broadcast nature of wireless channels facilitates one-to-many wireless charging, which is crucial for wireless networks with large numbers of energy-limited devices. On the other hand, compared to natural renewable energy sources generating intermittent energy, RF-based energy harvesting enables a stable and controllable wireless energy supply for energy-limited communication receivers. More importantly, WPT technology enables simultaneous wireless information and power transfer (WIPT). It is expected that WIPT will serve as a building block for realizing self-sustained communication networks and as the key to unlock the potential of IoT networks. However, despite the conveniences introduced by WIPT technology, the integration of WIPT technology into communication networks also introduces many challenges. For instance, the WPT efficiency is usually low. In practice, wireless power has to be transferred via a carrier signal with a high carrier frequency such that antennas of reasonable size can be used for harvesting energy at handheld devices. However, the associated path loss severely attenuates the signal such that only a small amount of power can be harvested at the receiver. For example, for a communication distance of 10 m in free space, the attenuation of a wireless signal can be up to 50 dB for a carrier frequency of 915 MHz. Moreover, traditional communication networks were optimized for pure data communications. Therefore, it is expected that existing network protocols, resource allocation algorithms, and receiver structures will not be able to meet the unique challenges incurred by the nature of WPT. This book addresses these challenges and provides a comprehensive reference for various solutions for realizing efficient WIPT in practice. In the following sections, we will provide some background information on WPT and discuss exciting research directions. The specific details will then be covered in the subsequent chapters.

1.2 Background

The concept of WPT was first proposed by Nikola Tesla in 1899. The initial efforts on WPT focused on high-power-consumption applications. This raised serious public health concerns about strong electromagnetic radiation which prevented the further development of WPT in the late twentieth century. As a result, this area developed slowly until recent advances in silicon technology and multiple-antenna technology made WPT attractive once again. In fact, the use of WPT avoids the potentially high costs in planning, installing, displacing, and maintaining power cables in buildings and infrastructure. Hence, it is expected that innovative WPT networks are the key enabler of the IoT to connect all devices together via wireless powered sensors for the development of smart cities. The continued study of WPT in both industry and academia will produce frontier technologies by developing novel and cost-effective designs to enable breakthroughs in WPT in the information and communication technology industry sector. For example, it is estimated that the development of IoT for logistics and transportation has a total potential economic impact of 1.9 trillion per year in the next decade [9]. In order to seize the rising business opportunities, recently different companies, e.g., Samsung Electronics and Huawei Technologies, have begun to launch various research and study groups to facilitate the development and standardization of WPT for powering small wireless communication devices.

1.2.1 RF-Based Wireless Power Transfer

The existing WPT technologies can be categorized into three classes: inductive coupling, magnetic resonant coupling, and RF-based WPT. The first two technologies rely on near-field EM waves, which do not provide any mobility to energy-limited wireless communication devices due to the limited wireless charging distances (a few meters) and the required alignment of the EM-field with the energy harvesting circuits. In contrast, RF-based WIPT exploits the far-field properties of EM waves, which enable concurrent wireless charging and data communication over long distances (hundreds of meters). Moreover, RF energy is omnipresent and can be harvested from the signals in the environment transmitted by Wi-Fi access points, TV base station towers, cellular communication base stations, etc. Also, RF-based WIPT utilizes the RF spectrum and the radiation is regulated by the government to ensure safety. More importantly, RF signals can serve as a dual-purpose carriers for conveying both information and power simultaneously.

Nowadays, prototype RF-based energy harvesting circuits are able to harvest microwatts to milliwatts of power over the range of 10 m for a transmit power of 1 W (typical transmit power of a Wi-Fi router) and carrier frequencies of less than 1 GHz [10]. The harvested energy is sufficient to power not only wireless

sensors (e.g., fire alarm sensors), but also digital clocks mounted on the wall, which reduces the inconvenience of battery replacement. Although WIPT is critical to the design and implementation of sustainable communication networks, existing system models and resource allocation algorithms have only been proposed and optimized for pure information transfer. In practice, network designers need to strike a balance in the non-trivial trade-off between information and power transfer, leading to significantly different resource allocation algorithms, system models, and interference management schemes, compared to conventional wireless data communications. The introduction of RF-based WIPT imposes new challenges for the design of data communication networks since traditional techniques used for the design of data communications cannot solve the fundamental problems in WIPT networks. Hence, there is an emerging need for the development of novel design theories, hardware circuit architectures, and signal processing techniques to unlock the potential of WIPT networks.

1.2.2 Receiver Structure for WIPT

RF-based energy harvesting technology enables the possibility of simultaneous WIPT (SWIPT), wireless-powered communication (WPC), and wireless-powered backscatter communication (WPBC), e.g., [11–15]. Specifically, in SWIPT networks, cf. Figure 1.1a, a transmitter broadcasts an information-carrying signal to provide information and energy delivery service simultaneously. In wireless-powered communication networks (WPCNs), cf. Figure 1.1b, wireless-powered devices first harvest energy, either from a dedicated power station or from ambient RF signals, and then exploit the harvested energy to transmit information signals. In WPBC, cf. Figure 1.1c, energy is transferred in the downlink and information is transferred in the uplink, where backscatter modulation at a tag is used to reflect and modulate the incoming RF signal for communication with a reader (e.g., access point). Since no oscillators are needed at the tags to generate carrier signals, backscatter communications generally entail orders-of-magnitude lower power consumption than conventional radio communications.

In practice, existing RF-based energy harvesting circuits harvest the energy of the received signal directly in the RF domain. In fact, the energy harvesting process destroys the modulated information (e.g., phase-embedded information) in the signal. In addition, conventional information decoding is performed in the digital baseband and the frequency down-converted signals cannot be used for energy harvesting. In other words, information decoding and energy harvesting cannot be performed on the same received signal. As a result, various types of practical energy harvesting receivers have been proposed to enable SWIPT/WPCN. In particular, for SWIPT, the receiver should separate the energy harvesting and information decoding processes.



Figure 1.1 Three commonly adopted WIPT network architectures: (a) a SWIPT network, (b) a WPCN, and (c) a WPBC network.

A practical solution is to split the received RF power into two distinct parts, one for energy harvesting and the other one for information decoding. In the following, we discuss two receiver architectures commonly adopted in the literature to achieve this signal splitting.

Time Switching (TS) Receiver: For TS receivers, the transmission is divided into two orthogonal time slots, one for transferring wireless energy and the other one for conveying information, cf. Figure 1.2a. The receiver switches between the co-located energy harvesting circuit and information decoding circuit for harvesting energy and decoding information in successive time slots [16]. In practice, by taking into account the channel statistics and QoS requirements for power transfer, the time durations and the switching sequence for wireless information transfer and energy transfer can be optimized to achieve different system design objectives. Although the TS receiver structure allows for a simple transceiver hardware implementation, it requires accurate time synchronization and information/energy scheduling and the associated control signaling overhead can be demanding, especially in multi-user systems.

Power Splitting (PS) Receiver: A PS receiver splits the signal received at an antenna into two streams at different power levels using a PS unit, cf. Figure 1.2b. In particular, one stream is conveyed to the RF-based energy harvesting circuit for energy harvesting, and the other one is down-converted to baseband for information decoding [16]. Obviously, the PS process incurs a higher receiver complexity compared to the TS process. In addition, optimization of the ratio of the two power streams is generally needed to achieve a balance between the information decoding and energy harvesting performance. Furthermore, insertion loss, additional noise, and circuit related interference may be introduced by the PS process [17]. However, PS receivers enable the possibility of SWIPT, as the received signal can be concurrently exploited for both information decoding and energy harvesting. Therefore, the PS receiver is more suitable for applications with critical information/energy or delay constraints [5] than the TS receiver.

In this book we present the current research trends in system modeling, physical layer design, and resource allocation algorithm design to overcome the challenges in implementing WIPT networks, which is needed to bridge the gap between theory and practice. In the following, we first provide an overview of some of these exciting research problems which will then be discussed in detail in the subsequent chapters.

1.3 Energy Harvesting Model and Waveform Design

To enable RF-based energy harvesting at a wireless communication receiver, a rectenna is usually deployed for converting electromagnetic energy into direct current (DC) electricity. In practice, various rectifier technologies



Figure 1.2 Block diagram of two receiver structures for WIPT: (a) time switching receiver and (b) power splitting receiver.



Figure 1.3 Examples of single series, voltage doubler, and diode bridge rectifiers designed for an average RF input power of -20 dBm at 5.18 GHz. v_s is the voltage source of the antenna [24]. R1 models the antenna impedance. C1 and L1 form the matching network. D1, D2, D3, and D4 refer to the Schottky diodes. C2 and R2 form the low-pass filter with R2 being the output load.

(including the popular Schottky diodes, complementary metal oxdide semiconductor (CMOS), backward tunnel diodes, etc.) and topologies (with single and multiple diode rectifiers) exist [18]. Examples of single series, voltage doubler, and diode bridge rectifiers consisting of one, two, and four Schottky diodes, respectively, are shown in Figure 1.3. In general, an accurate energy harvesting model can be obtained by deriving mathematical equations to describe the input–output characteristic of an energy harvesting circuit based on its schematic, e.g., Figure 1.3. However, this usually leads to complicated expressions which are intractable for performance analysis and resource allocation algorithm design. As a result, a linear model is often assumed for characterizing the harvested power after the rectifying circuit. In particular, a constant energy harvesting efficiency is assumed to model the capability of the RF-to-DC conversion circuit, e.g., [19, 20]. In other words, with this model, the power conversion efficiency is independent of the input power level of the energy harvesting circuit. Although the linear model is tractable, it has been verified by experimental data that RF-based energy harvesting circuits usually result in nonlinear end-to-end wireless power transfer [21]. More importantly, employing the linear energy harvesting model for resource allocation algorithm design may lead to unsatisfactory suboptimal performance, e.g., [18, 22, 23].

On the other hand, the performance of wireless energy harvesting is directly related to waveform design. For example, experiments have shown that signals with high peak-to-average power ratio (PAPR), such as multisine and chaotic signals, tend to yield higher DC powers for a given average incident RF power compared to constant envelope signals [25, 26]. This is because compared to a constant-envelope signal, for instance, a pulsed high-PAPR signal having the same average power charges the capacitor used in the rectifier to a higher peak amplitude, leading to a higher output DC voltage during the discharge time of the capacitor. On the other hand, for information transfer, Gaussian signals are optimal while constant-envelope signals are desirable from an implementation point of view. Hence, from a waveform design perspective, there is a non-trivial tradeoff between the performance of wireless information transfer and wireless power transfer. Further details on nonlinear energy harvesting models and waveform design can be found in Chapters 1, 3, and 11.

Efficiency and Interference Management 1.4 in WIPT Systems

Different from conventional wireless communication systems, where data rate and energy efficiency are the most important system performance metrics [4, 27, 28], in WIPT systems, the wireless energy transfer efficiency and fairness in resource allocation are equally important QoS metrics. Thus, the design of resource allocation algorithms should take into account the emerging need for energy transfer efficiency. In fact, the introduction of the energy harvesting capability to energy-limited receivers introduces a paradigm shift for system design. For instance, in conventional communication networks, co-channel interference is regarded as one of the major factors that limits the system performance, especially in multi-user systems. Hence, most interference management techniques designed for pure information communication systems aim to suppress or avoid interference via sophisticated resource allocation. However, in WIPT systems, the receivers may embrace strong interference since it can act as a vital source of energy. In fact, injecting artificial interference into the communication network may be beneficial for overall system performance, especially when the receivers do not have enough

energy to support their normal operations, since in this case keeping the receivers "alive" via energy harvesting is more important than information decoding. Moreover, by exploiting the extra degrees of freedom offered by multiple antennas, constructive interference can be created, which improves the performance of both information and energy transfer. Hence, there is a non-trivial tradeoff between interference, total harvested power, and energy consumption in WIPT networks. Resource allocation fairness issues in WIPT networks is covered in Chapter 7. A thorough study of the spectral and energy efficiency of WIPT networks is provided in Chapter 13, while the use of multiple antennas for improving the spectral efficiency of WIPT networks is investigated in Chapter 5. In addition, a detailed study on creating constructive interference for improving the performance of WIPT networks is presented in Chapter 10.

1.5 Security in SWIPT Systems

In SWIPT systems, one can increase the energy of the information-carrying signal to facilitate energy harvesting at energy-limited receivers. However, this method will also increase the susceptibility to eavesdropping due to the broadcast nature of wireless channels. Moreover, the escalating number of wireless energy harvesting devices also poses a security threat in future wireless communication networks due to the enormous amount of data transmitted over wireless channels [29-34]. Nowadays, cryptographic encryption algorithms operating in the application layer are adopted to ensure wireless communication security. Unfortunately, these traditional security methods may not be applicable in future wireless networks with large numbers of transceivers, since encryption algorithms usually require secure secret key distribution and centralized secrete key management via an authenticated third party. As an alternative or a complementary technology to the existing encryption algorithms, physical layer (PHY) security has been proposed for guaranteeing secure communication. The principle of PHY layer security is to exploit the unique characteristics of wireless channels, such as fading, noise, and interference, to protect the communication between legitimate devices from eavesdropping. In particular, it has been shown that in a wire-tap channel, a source and a destination can exchange perfectly secure information if the source-destination channel has better conditions compared to the source-eavesdropper channel [35]. Hence, multiple-antenna technology has been proposed to ensure secure communication, e.g., [36–40]. Specifically, by exploiting the extra spatial degrees of freedom offered by multiple antennas, an artificial noise/interference signal can be injected into the communication channel deliberately to impair the received signals at the potential eavesdroppers. Thereby, communication secrecy can be guaranteed

at the expense of allocating a large portion of the transmit power to artificial noise generation. On the other hand, the transmitted artificial noise can be harvested by the receivers and the recycled energy can be used to extend the lifetime of energy-constrained portable devices. The dual use of artificial noise for securing communication and facilitating energy harvesting is an important and unique property of secure SWIPT systems. This issue is discussed in detail in Chapter 11.

1.6 Cooperative WIPT Systems

Cooperative techniques for improving the performance of communication systems have drawn significant interest over the past decade. The basic idea of cooperative communication is that multiple single-antenna terminals of a multi-user system share their antennas to form a virtual multiple-input multiple-output (MIMO) communication system. Roughly speaking, there are three types of cooperation, namely, user cooperation, base station cooperation (distributed antennas), and relaying. In particular, cooperative relaying offers a low-cost implementation for achieving coverage extensions, diversity gains, and throughput gains. Nevertheless, in practical systems, relays may be equipped with limited energy supply and there is no strong incentive for the relays to cooperate. In contrast, with WIPT technology, operators can not only share the spectrum with users, but also energy and time. For instance, base stations run by the operators can broadcast wireless energy to charge up energy-limited cooperative devices as a token for future cooperation. This approach creates more incentives for both parties to cooperate and therefore improves the systems' overall spectrum efficiency without requiring external energy sources, e.g., [15, 41]. On the other hand, the distributed antenna system architecture of cooperative networks can be used to reduce the distance between transmitters and receivers. Furthermore, it inherently provides spatial diversity for combating path loss and shadowing, which can be exploited to facilitate efficient WIPT, e.g., [32]. Hence, cooperative techniques can be seamlessly integrated with WIPT for realizing sustainable communication networks. In Chapter 15, a macroscopic approach for characterizing the performance of large-scale wireless networks is discussed. In Chapter 12, the performance of a typical three-node cooperative WPCN is analyzed and evaluated.

1.7 WIPT for 5G Applications

The fifth-generation (5G) wireless networks will be a revolutionary design compared to existing communication systems. It is anticipated that 5G networks will connect at least 100 billion devices worldwide with approximately

Figure of merit	5G requirement	Comparison with 4G
Peak data rate	10 Gb/s	100 times higher
Guaranteed data rate	50 Mb/s	-
Mobile data volume	10 Tb/s/km ²	1000 times higher
End-to-end latency	Less than 1 ms	25 times lower
Number of devices	1 M/km ²	1000 times higher
Total number of human-oriented terminals	\geq 20 billion	-
Total number of IoT terminals	≥ 1 trillion	-
Reliability	99.999 %	99.99%
Energy consumption	-	90% less
Mobility	500 km/h	-

 Table 1.1 Requirements for 5G wireless communication systems [42]

7.6 billion mobile subscribers due to the tremendous popularity of smartphones, laptops, sensors, etc., and provide an individual user experience of up to 10 Gb/s. Some of the requirements for 5G wireless networks are listed in Table 1.1. In order to fulfill the requirements of 5G communication networks, various disruptive techniques, such as non-orthogonal multiple access (NOMA), millimetre wave (mmWave) communications, and mobile-edge computing, have been proposed in the literature. On top of this, advanced signal processing algorithms have been developed to improve the energy efficiency of communication systems. Nevertheless, despite the potential system throughput improvements and the reductions in consumed energy brought by these techniques, energy-limited communication devices with short life span still create a system performance bottleneck. Therefore, combing WIPT technology with 5G-enabling techniques has become an emerging research topic. In Chapters 6, 8, and 14, the application of WIPT in systems employing NOMA, mmWave, and mobile-edge computing is studied in detail.

1.8 Conclusion

This book is aimed at graduate students, researchers, and engineers in the field who are interested in WIPT communication networks and their applications. In particular, the first few chapters provide an introduction to WIPT and some basic hardware designs enabling WIPT. The middle part of the book is at a more advanced level and provides a further understanding and knowledge of WIPT systems. In the last part, we will study the fundamental problems in WIPT networks, including communication security in WIPT systems, energy transfer